
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 


REGlO!\'4 

SAM NUNN 

ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER 
61 FORSYTH STREET 


ATI ,ANiA GEORGIA _10_10]·R9flO 


FEB 022011 
CERTIFIRD MAIL 
RETURN RECEIPT REOUICSTED 

Mr. David j\,1oorc 
Ralch & Bingham LLP 
30 Ivan Allen Jr. Boulevard NW 
Suite 700 
Atlanta, Georgia 30308-3036 

St.:BJECT: 	 American ~1idstream C'vlissj"sippi), LLC 
Coment Agreement and. Final Order 
Docket No. CERCLA-04-2011-2016(b) 

Dear Mr. Moore: 

El1ciosed please tind an executed copy of tht: Cun!>ent Agreement and Finai Order 
(CAFO) that n:sulve::; the Comprehensive Environmental Response. Compensation, and Liability 
Act (CERCLA) matter (Docket No. CERCLA-04-2011-2016(b)) involving American Midstream 
{Mi:lsi::l!lippi), LLC. The CAFU was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, as required by 
40 C.F.R. Part 22 and became dfective on the dale of the tiling. 

Also enclosed, plea~ lind a oopy oftbe "l\otice of Securities Dnd Exchange Commission 
Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmental Legal Proceedings," This document puts you on 
notice of your potential dut)' to disclose to the Security and Exchange Commis.'Jion (SEC) any 
environmental enforcement actions taken by the Envirornnental Protection Agency (EPA). [f 
you luiVC any questions with regards to tbe SEC's environmental disclosure requirements, you 
mny refer [0 the contact phone number at th..: OOUum oflhe SEC Notice. 

If you have any que>liolUl. please call Ms. Michl KOlW at (404) 562-9558. 

Enclosures 

''ltemet Add'e$$ :URLj. 'lttpj1www,epa,gov 

~fcl.bfe'. PFFIeC 1'.'111'1 V~'lIblfl' 01 Based Irks "'1 'W¢yt:'ed Papar ;Mln.murr Jb"!. PilS«:Cf\SUmaf! 




UNITED STATES ENVIIl.ONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

REGION 4 


IN THE MATTER OF: 	 ) 
) 

American Midstream ) Docket Number: CERCLA-04-2011-2016(b} 

(Mississippi), LLC ) 


) 

Respondent ) ,-­

) 


CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER 

I. Nature or the Action 

L This is a civil penalty proceeding pursuant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. 
§ 9609 and pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing Administrative Assessment 
ofCivii Penalties, and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of Permits (Consolidated 
Rules), codified at 40 c.P.R. Part 22. Complainant is the Director ufthe Air, Pesticides and 
Taxies Management Division, Region 4, United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 
Respondent is American Midstream (Mississippi), LLC. 

2. Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement 
pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.18(b) and desire to resolve this matter and settle the allegations 
described herein without a formal hearing. Therefore, without the taking of any evidence or 
testimony, the making of any argument, or the adjudication of any issue in this matter, and in 
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22, 13(b) and 22.18(b), this Consent Agreement and Final Order 
(CAFO) will simultaneously commence and conclude this matter. 

TT. Preliminary Statements 

J. The authority to take action under Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9609 is 
vested in the Administrator of EPA. The Administrator of EPA has delegated this authority 
under CERcr,A to the Regional Administrators by .EPA Delegation 14-31 dated May 11, 1994. 
The Regional Administrator, Region 4, has redelegated to the Director, Air, Pesticides and 
Toxies Management Division, the authority under CERCLA by EPA Region 4 Dc1cgation 14-31 
dated March 8,1999. and updated August 6, 2004. Pursuant to these delegations, the Director of 
the Air, Pesticides and Toxics Management Division has the authority to commence an 
enforcement action as the Complainant in this matter. 

ll. Preliminary Statements 

4. Respondent, American Midstream (Mississippi), LLC, is a limited liability 
company doing business in the State of Mississippi. 
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5. Respondent is a "person" as define<! in Section 101(21) o[CERCLA. 42 U.S.C. 
§ 9601(21). 

6. Respondent has a "facility" as that term is dciined by Si.iCtlon 101(9) ofCERCLA, 
42 L:.S.C § 9601(9). 

7. Respondent's facility is located at a pipeline near 595 Ceamon Pittman Road, 
Waynesboro; Mississippi. 

8. Respondent is an II owner or operator" of the facililY a~ that term j::; defined by 
Section 101(20)(A) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9601(20)(A). 

ITT, EPA's Allegation ofVtolation 

9. Section 102(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9602(0), require<! the Administrator of 
EPA to publish a list of substances designated as hazardous suhstances which, when released 
into the environment, may present substantial danger to public health or welfare or the 
environment and to promulgate regulatinns es:tabl1shing the quantity of any hazardous sunstance 
the release of which was required to be I1v'P<>rtcd under Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 tJ,S,C. 
§ 9603(a). EPA has published and amended such II list, including the correlq1onding reportnble 
quantities (RQ) for those Sllbstanccs. This list which is codilicd at 40 C.F.R Part 302, wa:> 
initially published on Apri14. 1985 (50 red. Reg. 13474) and i, penodlClllly amended. 

10. Section I O3(a) of CERCI A 42 US,C. § 9603(.). and the regulations found at 
40 CY.R § 302.6, require a }J\:f:>on in charge of a facility or vessel to immediately notify the 
National Response Center (NRC), a.s soon as. he or she has knowledge ofa release of a hazardous 
SUr,st;;uice from such fucility or Vl:ssl..~l in an amount cqual to, or greater than the RQ. 

11, Respondent was in cllargc of the fadlity during the relevant period described 
below, 

12, I Iydrogen sulfide is a "hazardous substance'l as that telm is defIned by Section 
101(14) o[CtRCLA, 42 U.S.C § 9601(14), with an RQ of 100 pounds, as specified in 40 C.F.R. 
§ 302.4. 

(3, On April (5,2010, Respondent had \l. release of hydrogen sulfide above the RQ at 
the faciHty. 

14. EPA aUeges that Respondent violated the nutifkation requirements ofSection 
103(;,) ufCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), by tailing to immediately notify the NRC as soon as 
Respondent had knowledge of the release of hydrogen sulfidl.; in an amuunt t;."qual to or greater 
than jts RQ at Respondent ':; i~ciUty and is therefore subject to the assessment of penalties under 
Seaion 109 ofCERCLA.42 U.s.c. § 9609. 
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15. PUTSuantto Section 109 ofCERCLA,"2 U.S.C. ~ 9609, and 40 CF.R. Prot 19, 
EPA may assess a penalty notto exceed $37,500 for each violation ofSectionl03(a) of 
CERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9603(.), that occurred after January 12, 2009. Each day a violation of 
Section 103 continues cunstilute::; a separate violation. Civil penaltjes under Section 109 of 
CERe!.A, 42 LS.C. § 9609. may he "-".<sed by ,\dministrative Order. 

l6. For the purposes of this CAPO, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations 
set OUt above but neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set Gut aoove, 

17. Respondent waives any right to c,.mtl;'~t the allegations and hs right to appeal the 
proposed Final Order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

18. Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to I)UY the civil penalty as 
se'lorth in this CAPO. 

19, Rt'bpondenl certHies that as of the date of its execution of this CAFO, it i!! in 
compliance with all relevant requirements of CERCLA. 

20. Compliance witb the CAFO shall resolve the allegations of violations contained 
herein. This CAFO shall nol otherwise affect any liability ofR.spondenl to the United States 
other than as expressed herein. Keither EPA nor Complainant waives any right to bring an 
enforcement action against Respondent for violation of an)' federal or state statute, regulation or 
l')emlit, to initiate an action for imminent and substantial cndang ..~rmcnt, or to pursue criminal 
enfoJ\'.<;:mt:nL 

21. Complainant and Respondent agree to settle this matter by their execution of this 
CAFO. The parties agree that the settlement of this malleI' b; in lhe public interest and that this 
CAFO is consistent with the applicable requirements (JfCERCLA. 

22. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of SEVENTEEN THOUSAND THREE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($17,300) for tile CERCLA violation which shall be paid wilhin thirty 
(30) days ofthe eITective date of this CAPO. 

23. Respondent shall pay the CERCLA civil penalty by fonvarding a cashier's or 
t:crtified check, payable to "EPA Hazardous Suhstance Superfund" to one of the following 
addresses: 

BY MAIL BY OVER.."!IGHT 
t: ,S, Environmental Protection Agency U.S. Bank 
Superfund Pa),fficnh Attention: Natalie Pearson (3 J4) 418·4087 
Cincinnati Finance Center 1005 Convention Plaza 
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P.O. Box 979076 Mail Station ST,-MO-C2GL 

St. Louis, Missouri 63197~9000 St. Louis, Missuuri 63101 


The check shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number of the CAFO. 

Alternatively, Respondent shall pay the penalty by wire transfer. The wire transfer shall 
be directed to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, as described below. 

Federal Reserve Bank ofNew York 
ABA - 021030004 
Account ~ 68010727 
SWIFT address ~ FRNYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New York, New York 10045 
Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 
Envirornncntal Protection Agency" 

The wire transfer shall reference on its face the name and the Docket Number ufihe CAFO. 

24. At the time ofpayment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of each check, and 
a written statement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAFO, or written 
notification confinning any electronic ,",ire transfer, to the following persons at the following 
addresses: 

Regionaillearing Clerk 
u.s. EPA, Region 4 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Lawrence Fincher 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pesticides & Toxics Management Division 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

Saundi Wilson 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Office of Environmental Accountability 
61 Forsyth Street, S. W. 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 

25. For the purposes of state and federal income taxes, Respondent shall not be 
entitled, and agrees not to attempt, to claim a dedul:tion lor any civil penalty payment made 
pursuant to this CAFO. Any attempt by Respondent to deduct any such payments shall 
constitute a violation of this CAFO. 

26. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, .EPA is entitled to assess interesl and penalties on 
debts owed to the United Stales and a charge to cover the cost of processing and handling a 
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delinquent claim. Interest wiH therefore begin tQ a('.crut~ on the civil penalty from the effective 
date oflhis CAFO iflM penalty is not paid by the date required. Interest ",ill be assessed atthe 
rate established by the Secretary ofTreasury pursuantto 31 U.S.C § 3717. A charge will be 
assessed to cover the eosts ofdebt collection, mduding processing MId handling COdts: and 
attorney fees. In addition, a penalty charge wiH be asses$cd on any portion ur the debt that 
remains delinquent niorc than ninety (90) days nfter pnyment is due" 

27. Complainant and Respondent shall beur their own cost.. and attorney fees in this 
matter. 

28. This CAro shall be binding upon the Respondem. its successors. and assigns. 

29. The following individual is authorized to receive service for EPA in this 
proceeding: 

Caron K Falconer 
U.S. EPA Region 4 
Airl Pesticides & Toxics Managernenl DivbiQn 
61 Fors)1h Street, S.W. 
Atlanta, Goofgi. 30303 
(404) 562·8451 

30. Each undersigned representative of the parties to this CAFO certifies that he or 
she is tully authorized by the party rcpre~ented Lo enler inlO lhis CAFO and legally bind that 
party to it. 

Remainder <?tpage leji intt:nlivnaNy blunk 
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31. The effective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which tile CAFO is tiled with 
the Regional IIcaring Clt;rk. 

A"REED AKD CONSEKTED TO: 

u.s. Environmental Protection Agency 

B~:1.t«w/~ 4~ everly H, noister; Di tor 

Air, Pesth:ides & Toxics 

Management Division 

Regiun4 


APPROVED AND SO ORDERED this ! $ day of_J~"",,--,-- 20 II... 

~Schllb 
Regional Judicial Officer 
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CERTlHCATE OF SERVICE 


I herehy certifY that I have this day served a true and correct copy of the furegoing 


Docket )\0, EPCRA 04-2011-20lMbt on the parties listed helow in the manner indicated: 

Caron R falconer (Via EPA '5 inlc-mal mail) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 
Air, Pc:)liddes & Toxic::; Management Division 

6 J Forsyth Street 

Atlanta, vA 30303 


Robert Caplan (Via EPA', internal mall) 
U.S. EPA, Region 4 

Office of Environmental Accountability 

61 Forsyth Street 

Atlanta. GA 30303 


David rvloore (Certified Mail ~ Return Receipt Reques.ted) 
Balch & Bingham LLP 
30 Ivan Alkn Jr. Boulevard NW 
Suite 700 
Athmta. GA 30308·3036 

_.... 
Pi;1lrida A. Bu OC', e lOfL."d I Icaring C ex 
IJnlted States EnvirOluuentai 
Prott'\:lion Agency, Region 4 
Atlanta Federal Center 
61 Forsyth Street, S.W. 
Atlanta. GA 303m 
(404) 562·9511 
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__________________________ __ 

----
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taw.. ..-w. 5,..... Drt..........omc.
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r,0'...,'11.. I 'FnMIII__ 
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